

Prince George's County Council

Meeting Minutes - Final County Council County Administration Building 14741 Governor Oden Bowie Drive Upper Marlboro, Maryland 20772-3050

Todd M. Turner, Chair, District 4 Monique Anderson-Walker, District 8 Derrick Leon Davis, District 6 Thomas E. Dernoga, District 1 Mel Franklin, At-Large Dannielle M. Glaros, District 3 Sydney J. Harrison, District 9 Calvin S. Hawkins, II, At-Large Jolene Ivey, District 5 Rodney C. Streeter, Vice Chair, District 7 Deni L. Taveras, District 2

Robert J. Williams, Jr., Council Administrator

Tuesday, May 7, 2019	7:00 PM	Council Hearing Room

7:00 P.M. - RECONVENE

The meeting was reconvened by Chair Turner at 7:04 p.m. with ten member present. Council Member Harrison arrived at 7:09 p.m.

Present:	11 -	Chair Todd Turner
		Council Member Monique Anderson-Walker
		Council Member Derrick Davis
		Council Member Thomas Dernoga
		Council Member Mel Franklin
		Council Member Dannielle Glaros
		Council Member Sydney Harrison
		Council Member Calvin S. Hawkins
		Council Member Jolene Ivey
		Vice Chair Rodney Streeter
		Council Member Deni Taveras

Also present: Robert J. Williams, Jr. Council Administrator William M. Hunt, Deputy Council Administrator Redis C. Floyd, Clerk of the Council Donna J. Brown, Deputy Clerk of the Council Theresa Myers, Legislative Assistant, Office of the Clerk Candice Austin, County Executive's Office Leroy Maddox, Legislative Officer David Van Dyke, County Auditor Inez Claggett, Senior Legislative Auditor

PUBLIC HEARINGS: - (COUNCIL HEARING ROOM)

PH 05072019 Draft 1 PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY PROPOSED FY 2020 OPERATING
BUDGET, SIX-YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAM (INCLUDING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET) AND THE PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION PORTION OF THE COUNTY FY 2020
OPERATING BUDGET, PROPOSED BUDGET OF THE
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, REVENUE AUTHORITY AND
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF PRINCE GEORGE'S
COUNTY, AND THE CONSTANT YIELD TAX RATE

Pursuant to proper notice, the public hearing was convened at 7:06 p.m. Each Council Member introduced themselves to the audience. Chair Turner then read for the record, a statement with regard to the Prince George's County Fiscal Year 2020 Constant Yield Tax rate. The following persons provided verbal testimony (* indicates that writen testimony was submitted):

Comments by Elected Officials:

1. Delegate Erek L Barron, District 24, Prince George's County (unable to attend)

Comments by Interested Citizens:
1. Mark Noblett, Individual - (unable to attend)
2. Robert Antonetti, Jr., Partner, Shipley & Horne
3. Patricia Hayes-Parker, Executive Director, Central Kenilworth Avenue Revitilization Community Development Corporation
4. Jacqueline Beale, Hope Connections for Cancer Support *
5. Linda Stewart, Hope Connections for Cancer Support (unable to attend)
6. Jeffrey Dee, Habitat for Humanity Metro Maryland
7. Dr. Jerry Lewis, UMD Educational Opportunity Center *
8. Abigail Dina, UMD Educational Opportunity Center
10. Joel Solorzano, UMD Educational Opportunity Center
11. Ayaba Ljeba, UMD Educational Opportunity Center

12. Catalina Sol, Director, La Clinica Del Pueblo *

13. Tara McNerney, Program Director, Brighter Bites (unable to attend) 14. Evan Dintaman, Senior Project Manager, Out Teach 15. Jane McCarty, CEO, Out Teach (unable to attend) 16. Jacqueline Lee, Director, Maryland University Incentive Awards Program * 17. Sarah Cavitt, President, Indian Head Hwy Area Action Council * 18. Kim Rush Lynch, Co-Chair, Prince George's County Food Equity Council * 19. Jordan Silverman, A Wider Circle (unable to attend) 20. Mark Bergel, A Wider Circle * 21. Sequaya Tasker, Prince George's County Provider Council * 22. Karen Thompson, Executive Director, Family Restoration & Healing Center Inc. 23. Susan LaCourse, Individual * 24. Lucia Curieo, Capital Area Immigration Rights Coalition * 25. Atticus Ballestero, Capital Area Immigration Rights Coalition 26. Louisa Ockiya, Capital Area Immigration Rights Coalition 27. Nana Sartong, Capital Area Immigration Rights Coalition (unable to attend) 28. Christine Ash, Capital Area Immigration Rights Coalition 29. Donna Christy, Individual * 30. Synatra Smith, Ph.D., Education Curator, Prince George's African American Musuem 31. Elissa Kauffman, Individual 32. Rasheed Bonner, School Psychologist, PGCEA 33. Lauren Nixon, Coordinator, Prince George's County Food Equity Council 34. Tarin Shaw, Co-Chair, Food Justice Coalition of 20743 35. Collette Harris, Executive Director, NAMI Prince George's County (unable to attend) 36. Wilfredo Vanegas Ponce, Individual (unable to attend) * 37. Ana Saenz. Individual 38. Michele Clarke, Individual 39. Paul Howe, Board Member, Port Towns Community Development Corporation 40. Alicia Melendez, Board Member, Port Towns Community Development *Corporation (unable to attend)* 41. Nancy Meyer, CEO, Community Forklift * 42. Margaret Morgan Hubbard, CEO & Founder, Eco City Farms 43. Lori Morrow, Individual 44. Theresa Mitchell Dudley, President, PGCEA

45. Chrystie Lynch, PGCEA 46. Claudette Clarke, Individual * 47. Alyson Harkins, Individual (unable to attend) 48. Thomas Duke, Individual 49. Justin Robinson, Individual * 50. Kimberly Reece, Bargaining Committee Member, PGCEA * 51. Simone Malloy, Individual (unable to attend) 52. Geva Hickman-Johnson, Bargaining Committee Member, PGCEA 53. Stephanie Sheiman, Bargaining Committee Member, PGCEA 54. Rae Rossi, Individual (unable to attend) 55. Jason Gordon, Bargaining Committee Member, PGCEA 56. Yvonne Baicich, Vice-President, PGCEA (unable to attend) 57. Christopher Ojo, African House (unable to attend) 58. Felix Lazaro, PGCEA 59. Ann Marie Binsner, Executive Director, CASA/ Prince George's County 60. Charlean Rice, CASA/ Prince George's County 61. Victoria Nelson, CASA/ Prince George's County 62. Konrad Herling, Treasurer, Prince George's County Arts & Humanities Council (unable to attend) 63. Justine Christianson, President, Hyattsville Middle School PTSO 64. Charles Burt, Negotiations Team Member, PGCEA (unable to attend) * 65. Eduardo Lopez, Individual 66. Collette T. Williams, Bargaining Team Member, PGCEA (unable to attend) 67. Timothy R. Jansen, CEO, CCSI 68. Michele S. Williams, Interim Director, Family Crisis Center (unable to attend) 69. Q.C. Jones, 8(a) Accelerator Project Manager, Bowie Business Innovation Center * 70. Rosy Canfield, President, Canfield Cyber Defense Group 71. Brent Swinton, Vice President, Instituitonal Advancement, Bowie State University 72. Clara Allsup, Individual 73. Nancy Canales, Incentive Awards Program 74. Dulce Hernandez, Incentive Award Program (unable to attend) 75. Antonio Tyson, Incentive Awards Program (unable to attend) 76. Reshma Kasim, Eco City Farm 77. Rodney Lewis, Individual (unable to attend) 78. Preston Mears, Prince Georges Food Equity Council 79. Robert Ponichtera, Executive Director, Liberty's Promise *

80. Senait Zedew, Liberty's Promise

81. Nancy Portillo, Program Officer, Liberty's Promise 82. Ivette Del Cid, Program Officer, Liberty's Promise 83. Sophie Mindes, Program Officer, Liberty's Promise 83. Lorraine Holmes Settles, The Arc of Prince George's 84. Gary G. Allen, President, Bowie Supportive Housing Corporation * 85. Josie Bowen, Youth Professional Development, Inc. * 86. Karene Brodie, Executive Director, Hillside Work-Scholarship Connection * 87. Reginald Lawhorn, Service Area Manager, Wegmans Food Markets * 88. Ayana Douglas, District Manager, Wegmans Food Markets * 89. Kurt Stand, Individual 90. Sam Sesay, Founder & President, Game Plan, Inc. (unable to attend) * 91. Tammi Tatro, Media Specialist & School Test Coordinator, International High School at Langley Park 92. Joseph Tolbert, CEO/Founder, Life 360 Inc. (unable to attend) 93. Kevin Petty, CEO, Philemon Mission Transitional Facility 94. Paula Thompson, Executive Director, Voices of a Second Chance 95. Devin Smith, Consultant, National LGBT Chambers of Commerce 96. LeShaun Quander-Mosley, CEO/Founder, QED Inc. 97. Donald Ross, Program Director, City of Praise Family Ministry-*Celebrate Recovery* * 98. Thornton Fennell, Pastor, Genesis 99. Dr. Ron Garrett, Genesis 100. Jacqueline McSears Boles, SVP, Director of Retail Banking, Industrial Bank 101. Qiana Johnson, Executive Director, Life After Release (unable to attend) 102. Melanee Woodard, Assistant Vice President/Marketing, Industrial Bank (unable to attend) 103. LaTasha Ward, Vice President of Business Development, QED Inc. 104. Aracely Vargas, Individual 105. Josseline Vargas, Individual 106. Maria Marroquin, Individual 107. Marvin Ramirez, Individual (unable to attend) 108. Yolanda Tully, Employ Prince George's * 109. Julio Murrilo, Government & Strategic Relations Specialist, We Are CASA * 110. Amy Crone, Executive Director, Maryland Farmers Market Association (unable to attend) 111. Javae O'Neal, Individual 112. Ed Zipeto, Individual

113. Jonathan Abraham, Secretary, Mt. Rainier Spanish Instruction Advocacy Group * 114. Melissa Bitter, Individual (unable to attend) * 115. Doralicia Guiterrez, Individual 116. Nora Eidelman, Deputy Director, Community Legal Service of Prince George's County, Inc. * 117. Roger Figureoa, Latin American Youth Center (unable to attend) * 118. Konrad Herling, Treasurer, Prince George's County Arts & Humanities Council (unable to attend) 119. Franklin Amaya, La Clinica del Pueblo- Mi Refugio (unable to attend) 120. Martha Ainsworth, Prince George's Sierra Club (unable to attend) 121. Janet Gingold, Prince George's Sierra Club * 122. Marva Jo Camp, Executive Director, Leadership Prince George's/SPICE * 123. Giani Clarkson, Individual (unable to attend) 124. Yohannes Gebrewsus (unable to attend) 125. Pat Thornton, Executive Director, Gateway CDC 126. Anthony Lee, Persident of the Board, Gateway CDC 127. Mary Akubo Straubu (unable to attend) 128. Grace Walker (unable to attend) 129. Gladys Suent (unable to attend) 130. Karen Coakley (unable to attend) * The public hearing concluded at 10:44 p.m. Leroy Maddox, Legislative

Officer, read, for the record, potential additional projects to the proposed capital improvement program.

This Public Hearing was held

ADJOURN

<u>ADJ56-19</u>

Draft 1

The meeting was adjourned at 11:13 a.m.

A motion was made by Council Member Glaros, seconded by Council Member Taveras, that this ADJOURN be motion to adjourn passed. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye11 -Turner, Anderson-Walker, Davis, Dernoga, Franklin,
Glaros, Harrison, Hawkins, Ivey, Streeter and Taveras

Prepared by:

Donna J. Brown, Deputy Clerk of the Council

Submitted by:

Redis C. Floyd, Clerk of the Council